) Earth Negotiations Bullei

A Reporting Servicefor Environment and Devel opment Negotiations

Vol. 12 No. 115

Published by the International Institute for Sustainable Development (11ISD)

Thursday, 28 October 1999

HIGHLIGHTSFROM THE FIFTH
CONFERENCE OF THE PARTIESTO THE
FRAMEWORK CONVENTION
ON CLIMATE CHANGE
WEDNESDAY/, 27 OCTOBER 1999

Delegatesmet in Plenary to consider proposalsto amend
Annexes| and |1 to the Framework Convention on Climate Change
(FCCC). The Subsidiary Body for Scientific and Technological
Advice (SBSTA) considered: development and transfer of technol-
ogies; Annex | communications; methodol ogical issues; coopera-
tion with relevant international organizations; and research and
systematic observation. The Subsidiary Body for Implementation
(SBI) discussed greenhouse gas (GHG) inventory datafor Annex |
communications, intergovernmental meetings, and administrative
and financial matters. Contact groups met to consider: adverse
effects; land use, land-use change and forestry (LULUCF);
capacity building; activitiesimplementedjointly (AlJ); non-Annex
| communications; and Annex | communications.

PLENARY

COP-5met in Plenary to consider proposed amendmentsto
FCCC Annexes| and Il. Turkey’s proposal to be removed fromthe
Annexeswas supported by PAKISTAN, theUS, MEXICO and
GEORGIA. TheMARSHALL ISLANDS expressed concern about
the precedent it would set.

Several Annex | Partieswel comed Kazakhstan's proposal to be
includedin Annex |. Several non-Annex | Partiessaid further infor-
mation was needed on Kazakhstan's ability to fulfill Annex |
commitments. AUSTRALIA and theRUSSIAN FEDERATION
said no information requirementswere placed oninitial members
of Annex |. KAZAKHSTAN expressed willingnessto provide the
required information. SUDAN called for guidelines on amending
the Annexes. INDIA, with CHINA and IRAN, recommended the
useof Article4.2 (g) (provision for non-Annex | Partiesto bind
themselvesto commitmentsin 4.2 (a) and (b)). The President will
conduct informal consultations on both issues.

SBI

ANNEX | COMMUNICATIONS: On GHG inventory data
for Annex | communications, theUS, with POLAND, stressed that
timeliness and compl eteness of submissionswerecritical in
providing abasisfor COP action. The EU noted that itsfuture
national systemswould fulfill quality and time requirements, and
expressed concern about the continuousincreasein GHG emis-
sionssince 1997.

ARRANGEMENTSFOR INTERGOVERNMENTAL
MEETINGS: On the date and venue of COP-6, the G-77/CHINA
proposed holding it in November 2000 and expressed concern over
the proliferation of intersessional activitiesand workshops, their
budgetary implications and obstacles for devel oping country

participation. In view of theworkload to meet the Buenos Aires
Plan of Action (BAPA), the US, with CANADA, AUSTRALIA
and NEW ZEALAND, said COP-6 should be held early in 2001
with variousintersessional activitieson the run-up. CHINA said
the BAPA only callsfor “demonstrable progress’ by COP-6. The
EU and others emphasized the need for sufficient progressto allow
early entry into force of the Protocol. To maintain political
momentum, JAPAN noted its preference for COP-6 in November
2000. SWITZERLAND said timing of COP-6 should result from
progress on pending issues and highlighted the need for awork-
plan.

ADMINISTRATIVE AND FINANCIAL MATTERS: On
income and budget performance in the biennium 1998-1999 and
arrangements for administrative support to the FCCC, the EU
proposed an open-ended group to clarify someissues. The G-77/
CHINA called for informal consultations by Chair Ashe. The US
expressed hopefor the resolution of pending i ssueson non-Annex |
communications to ensure budgetary resourceson thistopic.

On implementation of the Headquarters Agreement the Execu-
tive Secretary noted the need for more office space to host the
growing Secretariat.

SBSTA

TECHNOLOGY TRANSFER: Delegates expressed appreci-
ation of the African regional workshop organized as part of the
consultative process. The IPCC outlined the Special Report on
technology transfer and said actionsto enhance technol ogy transfer
are specific to sectors, national circumstances and stakeholders.

Several Parties said the private sector should drive technology
transfer. AUSTRALIA, the US and the EU highlighted the poten-
tial role of the clean devel opment mechanism (CDM) in technol ogy
transfer. The PHILIPPINES, with SAUDI ARABIA and CHINA,
stressed that technol ogy transfer was acommitment under the
FCCC and opposed linking it to the CDM. CHINA said technology
transfer under the Protocol should be additional to that under the
FCCC. The PHILIPPINES called for information on technology
transfer activitiesin Annex-1 communications. AOSI S stressed
addressing adaptation technologies. The G-77/CHINA called for a
COP-5 decision on capacity building. SWITZERLAND under-
scored consideration of specific national circumstances. The
REPUBLIC OF KOREA noted the need to review the transfer of
public-funded technology in the consultative process. The
CLIMATE TECHNOLOGY INITIATIVE provided an overview of
itsventuresasamultilateral facilitator of technology diffusion. A
draft decision will be prepared.

ANNEX | COMMUNICATIONS: Regarding “best prac-
tices” in policiesand measures (P& Ms), Chair Dovland announced
that Denmark will host aworkshopin April 2000. The EU said the
upcoming workshop should consider, inter alia, defining “ best
practices’ and assessing the extent to which international coopera-
tion may enhance effectiveness of P& Ms. AUSTRALIA preferred

Thisissue of the Earth Negotiations Bulletin © (enb@iisd.org) iswritten and edited by PaolaBettelli (pbettelli @iisd.org), Leanne Burney (leanne@iisd.org), Chad Carpenter
(chadc@iisd.org), Angela Churie (churie@I.kth.se), Lavanya Rajamani (lavanya.rajamani @hertford.ox.ac.uk), Chris Spence (spencechris@hotmail.com) and Juliette
Voinov (cedrickohler@msn.com). The Editor is Pamela Chasek, Ph.D. (pam@iisd.org) and the Managing Editor is Langston James "Kimo" Goree (kimo@iisd.org). The
WWW Content Editor is Peter Doran (pfdoran@ecol ogy.u-net.com). Digital engineering by Andrei Henry (ahenry@iisd.ca), Kenneth M. Tong (k8o@interlog.com) and
Richard Stokes (rstokes@iisd.ca). Photography by Leila Mead (leila@interport.net). French translation by Mongi Gadhoum (mongi.gadoum@enb.intl.tn). Logistics
coordinated by PJ. Goldfeder (pjgold14@aol.com). The Sustaining Donors of the Bulletin are the Netherlands Ministry of Foreign Affairs, the Government of Canada
(through CIDA), the United States (through USAID), the Swiss Agency for Environment, Forests and Landscape, the United Kingdom Department for International
Development (DFID) and the European Commission (DG-XI). Genera Support for the Bulletin during 1999 is provided by the German Federal Ministry of Environment
(BMU) and the German Federal Ministry of Development Cooperation (BMZ), the Danish Ministry of Foreign Affairs, the Ministries of Environment and Foreign Affairs of
Austria, theMinistries of Foreign Affairs and Environment of Norway, the Ministry of Foreign Affairsand Ministry of Environment of Finland, the Government of Sweden,
the United Nations Development Programme (UNDP), the Global Environment Facility (GEF) and the Ministry for the Environment in Iceland. Specific funding for this
meeting has been provided by the UNFCCC Secretariat. The Bulletin can be contacted by e-mail at (enb@iisd.org) and at tel: +1-212- 644-0204; fax: +1-212-644-0206. |1SD
can be contacted by e-mail at (info@iisd.ca) and at 161 Portage Avenue East, 6th Floor, Winnipeg, Manitoba R3B 0Y 4, Canada. The opinions expressed in the Earth
Negotiations Bulletin are those of the authors and do not necessarily reflect the views of 11SD and other funders. Excerpts from the Earth Negotiations Bulletin may be used
in non-commercial publications only and only with appropriate academic citation. For permission to use this material in commercial publications, contact the Managing
Editor. Electronic versions are sent to e-mail distribution lists and can be found on the Linkages WWW server at http://www.iisd.ca/linkages/. The satellite image by The
Living Earth, Inc., at http://www.livingearth.com. For information on the ENB, send e-mail to (enb@iisd.org).




Thursday, 28 October 1999

e

Vol. 12 No. 115 Page 2

referenceto “good” rather than “best” practices and, with JAPAN
and the US, said P& Ms should reflect national circumstances.
SAUDI ARABIA said the workshop should al so address “ wrong”
practices.

METHODOLOGICAL ISSUES: Onemissionsresulting
fromfuel used for international transportation, del egates consid-
ered the International Maritime Organization’sreport on itsactivi-
tiesto prevent air pollution from ships. The International Civil
Aviation Organization reported on the progressmade in devel oping
an Action Plan on aircraft engine emissionsand in evaluating
market-based optionsin limiting bunker emissions.

On dllocation of international bunker emissions, the CLIMATE
ACTION NETWORK advocated their inclusion in national inven-
tories. The EU recommended completing the work on including
international bunker emissionsin national inventories before nego-
tiating the second commitment period. The REPUBLIC OF
KOREA, supported by AUSTRALIA, NEW ZEALAND and
JAPAN, said it was premature to discuss all ocation due to the diffi-
cultiesin differentiating emissions resulting from national and
international fuel.

The UShighlighted the need for guidance on definitionsand
clarity. NEW ZEALAND, withthe EU and the US, stressed
improving reporting of bunker emissionsfor consistency and
comparability. Jose Romero (Switzerland) will conduct informal
consultations on thisissue.

Ontheimpact of single projects on emissionsin the commit-
ment period, ICELAND said single projects have agreater propor-
tional impact on emissionsin smaller countries, affecting their
ability to meet emissionstargets. He called for aconclusive deci-
siononthisissueat COP-6. CANADA expressed reservationson
theissue and opposed the draft decision tabled by Iceland at COP-4
initscurrent form. Informal consultationswill be conducted by Ole
Plougmann (Denmark) to forward conclusions or adraft decision
to SBSTA.

Regarding the scientific and methodol ogical aspectsof the
proposal from Brazil , several del egates supported the concept of
differentiated responsibilities, while anumber noted that further
scientific analysiswould be useful. The EU and PERU, opposed by
MALAY SIA, said theissue should be considered as part of IPCC's
Third Assessment Report. Chair Dovland said he would prepare
draft conclusions on thisissue, following informal consultations.

On other matters, SBSTA decided to exclude consideration of
harvested wood products. However, Parties were asked to submit
their viewsto the Secretariat. On information on decision toolsto
evaluate climate change impacts and adaptation strategies, the
Secretariat requested submissions from Parties.

COOPERATIONWITH RELEVANT INTERNATIONAL
ORGANIZATIONS: The Secretariat outlined itseffortson an
inter-agency project proposal for capacity building under the
CDM. The PHILIPPINES and CHINA recommended consider-
ation of the G-77/China capacity-building draft decision.
UGANDA proposed a permanent clearing-house to streamline
funding. The EU stressed the need for continuous cooperation.

On cooperation with other Conventions, SBSTA heard reports
from UNEP, the UN Convention to Combat Desertification and the
Convention on Wetlands on synergies between the FCCC and other
conventions.

SBSTA continued its deliberations|late into the evening on
agendaitems on: ways and means of limiting emissions of hydrof-
luorocarbons and perfluorocarbons; coastal adaptation technolo-
gies; and research and systematic observation.

CONTACT GROUPS

ADVERSE EFFECTS: The contact group on implementation
of FCCC Articles 4.8 and 4.9 and mattersrelating to Protocol
Article3.14 (adverse effects) discussed the recent workshop held
inBonn. Several delegatescalled for analysison the effects of

response measuresfor al devel oping countries, not only oil
producing countries. Delegates wereinvited to submit written
proposals on possible actionsto be synthesized by the co-chairs.

AlJ: A contact group onthe AlJand itspilot phaseraised a
number of issues, including: whether to continue the review
beyond this session; if the pilot phase should continue and, if so, in
what form; whether the group should take decisions or make
recommendations about the ligibility of AlJto become CDM or
JI; and if theissue of eligibility should be discussed by the contact
group on mechanisms. Some del egates stressed the need to discuss
AlJ sprospects, noting the need for incentivesto maintain the
momentum.

CAPACITY BUILDING: The contact group on capacity
building discussed procedural issues. The G-77/CHINA saidits
draft decision should serve asthe basisfor arecommendation to
COP-5, sinceit presents a comprehensive approach to all capacity
building activities and specifies devel oping countries’ needsin its
annex. Other delegates said COP-5 should establish a process
leading to a substantive decision at COP-6. They said more work
was needed on assessing specific national needs. A co-chairs’ text
will be prepared based on Parties’ written submissions.

ANNEX | COMMUNICATIONS: Thiscontact group
continued consideration of the second part of arevised draft text on
guidelinesfor Annex | communications. Patrici pants discussed
P& Mss, projections of thetotal effect of P& M's, and exchanged
initial viewson financia resources. Delegates agreed on anumber
of paragraphs. They invited the Chair to settle the terminol ogy of
projections “without measures,” since these were unusual terms
compared to “businessasusual,” and misleading, asthey seemed to
exclude consideration of P& Msimplemented prior to the starting
point of the projection. They also deferred consideration of the
information to beincluded in the description of each P& Msto a
smaller group.

NON-ANNEX | COMMUNICATIONS: The Chair distrib-
uted adraft text compiling the EU and G-77/CHINA proposalson
non-Annex | communications. Thegroup decided to devoteitstime
to aquestion-and-answer session with the GEF and itsimple-
menting agencies. Participantsdiscussed inter alia: GEF'sinter-
pretation of “agreed full costs,” the non-duplication principle
endorsed by the GEF Council, the terms of agreement between the
implementing agency and the recipient country, including termsfor
the disbursement of funds, GEF funding for adaptation measures
and FCCC COP guidanceto the GEF.

LULUCEF: The contact group, co-chaired by Halldor Thor-
geirsson (Iceland) and Philip Gwage (Uganda), expressed
diverging views on timing for consideration of the need for
country-specific dataand information and itsrel ationship to a deci-
sion-making framework in the context of the Protocol. Therewas
general agreement on the consideration of the |PCC Special Report
at SBSTA-12. Thegroup also agreed toinitiate an exchange views
on adecision-making framework and on data requirements.

IN THE CORRIDORS

While some observerswere suspicious that Kazakhstan's
proposal to add itself to Annex | could create anew source of “hot
air,” otherswelcomed themove asafirst step toward expanding the
number of countrieswith limitation and reduction commitments.
Several participantsalsofelt that systemicinadequaciesin the
climate regime made it extremely difficult to deal with requestsfor
addition or deletion from the Annexesin aprincipled manner.

THINGSTO LOOK FOR TODAY
SBSTA: SBSTA will meetinPlenary | at 10:00 am.
JWG: The WG on compliancewill meetin Plenary Il at
10:00 am.
CONTACT GROUPS: Contact groupswill be held
throughout the day. Consult the announcement board for details.



